
ULSTER COUNTY LEGISLATURE 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

FEBRUARY 19, 2013 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

ULSTER PERFORMING ARTS CENTER, 
601 BROADWAY, KINGSTON, NY 12401 

 
7:00 PM 

 
MEETING CALLED TO ORDER BY CHAIRMAN:  7:00 PM   
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG:  Led by Kingston resident Ken Cooper 
 
MOMENT OF SILENT MEDITATION:  
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 

FIRE EVACUATION PLAN 
 
PLEASE NOTE THAT IN THE EVENT OF AN EMERGENCY; PLEASE EXIT THE THEATER 
FOLLOWING THE EXIT SIGNS AND MOVE AT LEAST ONE BLOCK AWAY FROM THE 
THEATER IN ORDER NOT TO IMPEDE THE FIREFIGHTERS IN THEIR DUTIES 
 
 
CELL PHONES 
 
Please silence cell phones and refrain from texting for the duration of Session. 
 
 
MICROPHONES 
 
Please be reminded to use your microphones when speaking so that you are recorded for the official 
record. 

 
TERRY L. BERNARDO, Chairman 
JAMES F. MALONEY, Vice Chairman 
KENNETH J. RONK, JR., Majority Leader 
DAVID B. DONALDSON, Minority Leader 
VICTORIA A. FABELLA, Clerk 
 
 

P.O. Box 1800 
KINGSTON, NEW YORK 12402 

Telephone:  845 340-3900 
FAX:  845 340-3651 

 



MINUTES 
PAGE 2  
FEBRUARY 19, 2013 
 
ROLL CALL:                   Present:     22            Absent:     1 
       (Legislator Lopez) 
       (Legislator Briggs left at 10:15 PM) 
 
               
BIRTHDAYS:  Richard Parete, February 25; Terry Bernardo, February 28; T.J. Briggs, March 7 
 
 
MOTION TO DISPENSE WITH THE READING OF THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS 
MEETING: Legislator Ronk motioned, seconded by Legislator Donaldson. 
 
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM: 
 
Legislative Chairman Bernardo 
Kingston City Planning       Negative Declaration – Kingston  
         Meadows Senior Housing 
Ulster County Assn. of Town Supervisors & Mayors  January 22, 2013 Letter – Sup. Carl 
         Chipman 
Ancient Order of Hibernians     January Letter, Advertising Form,  
         Rules & Regulations, Registration  
         Form 
NY Municipal Insurance Reciprocal    February 4, 2013 Reception Invitation 
Laberge Group       Grant Alert Local Government  
         Efficiency Grants  
Ulster County Comptroller      Memorandum re:  Investment Policy 
Kingston City Planning      Memorandum re:  Kingston Meadows 
         SEQR Negative Declaration 
Ulster County United Way      Free Tax Preparation 
Diamond Mills       Ulster Chamber Discount Offer 
Fire Advisory Board       January 2013 Minutes 
NYS Department of State Confirmation of January 2, 2013 

Filing of Local Law 10 2012 
New York Association of Counties NYSAC, Volume 14, Issue 1, Winter 

2013 
Village of Ellenville January 13, 2013 Letter, Resolution 
Central Hudson Energy Bulletin, January 2013 
Town of Rochester Calendar of Events, 2013 February, 

March & April  
 
 



MINUTES 
PAGE 3  
FEBRUARY 19, 2013 
 
COMMUNICATIONS (continued): 
 
UCIDA Proposed MHMG-KM Kingston LLC 

Project  
Hodgson Russ EA Flatbush, LLC Project 
 Wolftec, Inc. Project 
SUNY Ulster Audited Financial Statements Year 

Ending August 31, 2012 
Ulster County Clerk 2012 Annual Report  
Ulster County Tourism Cultural Heritage Guide 
Ulster County Community Services Board Notice of Appointments to Board 
NYS Dept. Environmental Conservation Acknowledgment of Resolution No. 

278 
Catskill Mountain Railroad Co., Inc. Letter in Response to State of the 

County Address 
Town of Shandaken Clerk Certified Resolution #58-13 
Catskill Watershed Corporation February 6, 2013 Adopted Resolutions 

No. 2245 – 2253 
Ulster County RRA January 13, 2013 letter with Hauler 

Application; Attachment A and 
Attachment B, Local Law Number 4 
of 2010, Local Law Number 10, 2012; 
and Local Law No. 9 of 1991  

Ulster County Area Transit Grant #NY-96-X021 Arra Grant 
 Grant #NY-90-X654-00  
Ulster County Chamber of Commerce Social February 19, 2013 @ Mariner’s 

Harbor, Artcraft Business 
Cards/Brochures/Flyers Offer; Health 
Alliance Free Heart Screenings 7:00 
a.m. – 9:00 a.m February 20 
Membership Breakfast; Ski Packages 
available in Ulster County; Ulster 
BOCES Success Story; Team Ireland 
25th Annual Shamrock Run, March 10, 
2013, 12:50 p.m.; Miles of HOPE  

Ulster County Chamber of Commerce  Breast Cancer Foundation, 9th Annual 
Brunch – May 5, 2013 

Toski & Co., P.C.  Letter with County Jail & Commissary  
 Year Ended December 31, 2012 
UC Human Rights Commission January 3, 2013 Minutes 
Community Services Board January 14, 2013 Minutes 



MINUTES 
PAGE 4  
FEBRUARY 19, 2013 
 
COMMUNICATIONS (continued): 
 
LWV of Mid-Hudson Region Commentator, February 2013 
Community Foundations of Hudson Valley A Sense of Communities, Newsletter 
Catskill Center Lake Placid Olympic Facilities Tour, 
 March 14, 2013 
Saugerties Historical Society Winter 2012 Newsletter 
Youth Board December 20, 2012 Minutes 
 
 
COUNTY EXECUTIVE COMMUNICATIONS:  
 
 Adopted Budget 2013 
 2013 Adopted Budget Personnel 
 Listing  
 January 2013 Budgetary Transfers 
 2013 State of the County Address 
 Letter re: Mental Health Issue with 

Chart 
 Statement of Expenditures, 

Encumbrances & Unencumbered 
Balance & State of Revenues Earned 
& Unearned Balance Year to Date as 
of December 31, 2012 (Preliminary) 

  
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS:      DATE: 
    
Economic Development & Tourism     December 17, 2012 
Environmental, Energy & Technology    November 29, 2012 
Health & Personnel       January 7, 2013 
Law Enforcement & Public Safety     January 8, 2013 
Laws & Rules, Governmental Services    January 15, 2013    
Public Works & Capital Projects     November 28, 2012 
Social Services       November 8, 2012 
         November 26, 2012 
Ways and Means        December 18, 2012 
         January 15, 2013 
         January 22, 2013    
 
 



MINUTES 
PAGE 5  
FEBRUARY 19, 2013 
 
Chairman Terry L. Bernardo extended gratitude to County Executive Michael Hein, Deputy 
Executive Robert Sudlow in coordinating the efforts of the Departments of Information Services, 
Buildings and Grounds, Planning and UCAT.  Chairman Bernardo also extended gratitude to Ulster 
County Sheriff Paul VanBlarcum, Undersheriff Faluotico and Kingston City Police Chief Egidio 
Tinti for their services as well as Director Chris Silva and the UPAC staff for arranging the use of 
UPAC with such short time constraints.   
 
       
PRESENTATIONS:  There are no presentations scheduled for tonight’s meeting. 
 
 
PRIVILEGE OF THE FLOOR: 
 
Chairman Terry L. Bernardo recognized Chris Silva, Executive Director of the Bardavon and the 
Ulster Performing Arts Center (UPAC) who provided a presentation on the programs and services 
offered by UPAC.   
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  There were 62 public commentators. 
 

1. Joe Michaels: 
Mr. Michaels stated he is a resident of Shandaken as well as a licensed professional 
engineer who was appearing on behalf of the Catskill Mountain Railroad requesting 
the reinstatement of the Catskill Mountain Railroad Advisory Committee.  Mr. 
Michaels stated that FEMA grants were available and if accessed, could be used jointly 
for a rail with trail system.  He felt this was a viable option if the Railroad Advisory 
Committee was in place.  Mr. Michaels stated that, as a hunter and sportsman, he 
supported the Second Amendment and felt their heritage needed to be preserved.  

2. George Bain: 
Mr. Bain stated he was a gun owner, pistol permit carrier and a supporter of the Second 
Amendment but that wasn’t why he was in attendance.  Mr. Bain spoke in support of 
the Catskill Mountain Railroad hoping to bring tourist into Ulster County, with the 
help of volunteers. He stated he believed success would be in reinstating the Catskill 
Mountain Railroad Committee.   

3. Peter Fluchere: 
Mr. Fluchere stated that volunteers had worked over the weekend on a switch in the 
yard on Cornell Street in Kingston to bring the Route 209 railroad cars back for 
restoration.  Mr. Fluchere asked that the Committee be re-formed. 



MINUTES 
PAGE 6  
FEBRUARY 19, 2013 

 

4. Neil Isabelle:  
Mr. Isabelle stated his concern for the rails in Ulster County and that the Catskill 
Mountain Railroad needed to be preserved.  He also stated his support for the Second 
Amendment. 

5. Earl Pardini: 
Mr. Pardini stated that he hoped that the Railroad Advisory Committee would be 
reinstated and voiced his support for the Second Amendment. 

6. Dan Howard: 
Mr. Howard spoke in support of a rail with trails system.  Mr. Howard indicated that 
the railroad aspect was the option for mobility impaired individuals to access the 
beauty of the area.  

7. John Patane: 
Mr. Patane stated he was a locomotive engineer and heavy equipment operator who 
noted the railroad was a county asset and tourist attraction.  He felt the rails with trails 
plan was feasible. 

8. Sion Mitrany: 
Mr. Mitrany echoed the opinions of the speakers before him with regard to the railroad.  
He wished to speak on the issue of property taxes and the methodology Ulster County 
used to collect on tax arrearages.  He believed there were better ways in collection. 

9. Auguste VanEtten: 
Mr. VanEtten spoke specifically in support of draft Resolution 0154.    

10. Don Badgley: 
Mr. Badgley addressed two clauses of the draft Resolution that dealt with the Second 
Amendment. Mr. Badgley asked that the entire 27 words of the Second Amendment be 
recognized, stating that the first 13 words of the Amendment had been ignored.  
Written statement on file with the Clerk of the Legislature.   

11. Dan LeFever: 
Written statement on file with the Clerk of the Legislature. 

12. Chris Acosta:  



MINUTES 
PAGE 7  
FEBRUARY 19, 2013 

 
Mr. Acosta spoke in defense of the Second Amendment but against the draft 
Resolution; considered it meaningless. He congratulated Governor Cuomo for having 
courage to do something. 

13. Lin Sakai:  
Ms. Sakai asked the Legislature to “please protect children, not guns” and to not 
support the Resolution. 

14. David Sides:  
Written statement on file with the Clerk of the Legislature. 

15. Nick Alba:  
Written statement on file with the Clerk of the Legislature. 

16. Alice Cook:  
Written statement on file with the Clerk of the Legislature. 

17. Joe Livoti:  
Mr. Livoti spoke in support of the S.A.F.E. Act stating that assault weapons on the 
streets aren’t necessary, all guns should be registered and that it was a responsibility 
that all should take seriously. 

18. Karen Charman: 
Written statement on file with the Clerk of the Legislature.  

19. Roscoe Pecora: 
Mr. Pecora stated he was a former Ulster County Legislator who didn’t agree with the 
proposed Resolution as written and believed that it should be referred back to 
Committee.   

20. Tom Rinaldo:  
Mr. Rinaldo stated he was a Shandaken resident who strongly supported the railroad.  
In addition, he supported the Second Amendment and the U.S. Constitution but that 
limits exist and should exist and the roll of government is to protect the citizens. 

21. Robert Lippman: 
Written statement on file with the Clerk of the Legislature.  

22. Joanne Chamberlain: 



MINUTES 
PAGE 8  
FEBRUARY 19, 2013 

 
Ms. Chamberlain stated she was the President of the Ulster County Democratic 
Women and spoke out against the draft Resolution 0154.  She urged the Legislature to 
not move forward with the Resolution. 

23. Anne Wandres:  
Ms. Wandres stated she was a Town of Ulster resident who was in opposition to draft 
Resolution 0154 and supported the S.A.F.E Act.  Ms. Wandres believed that message 
was conveyed by what it supported and the SAFE Act was conveying a correct 
message. 

24. Gary Bischoff:  
Mr. Bischoff stated the Legislature shouldn’t be passing the proposed Resolution. Mr. 
Bischoff stated that erring on the side of safety was needed rather than erring on side of 
convenience.   

25. Jackie Brownstein:  
Ms. Brownstein stated she was a New Paltz resident and urged the Legislature not to 
pass the draft Resolution asking for repeal of the SAFE Act.  Ms. Brownstein 
referenced a Sienna College poll which supported gun control.   

26. Rich Vizzini:  
Mr. Vizzini stated that the SAFE Act not only violated the Second Amendment and the 
United States and New York State Constitutions but does nothing to protect the 
citizens or our children.  He stated that the NYS Penal Code, as written, makes an 
individual owning a gun with a 30 round magazine grouped into the same category as a 
rapist and a child molester for something that was previously legal. He asked that the 
Legislature vote “yes” on the proposed Resolution. 

27. Russell Oakes:  
Mr. Oakes stated the people allowed elected government officials to pass grossly 
unjust laws in the middle of the night, under false pretenses, without involvement of 
the people.  He felt allowing that type of midnight legislation set the stage for future 
legislation of that type.   

28. Laurel Lindewall:  
Ms. Lindewall stated citizens didn’t have life insurance at the end of a barrel.   

29. Dr. Jeffrey Saffir:  

 



MINUTES 
PAGE 9  
FEBRUARY 19, 2013 

 
Dr. Saffir stated law abiding citizens who own guns were not the problem and gun 
control laws were not serving the purpose as indicated. 

30. Michael Leone:  
Mr. Leone asked the Legislature to support proposed Resolution 0154.  He remarked 
that individuals were interpreting the Constitution and the Second Amendment in their 
own terms.  He added the mental health issue was completely separate from the 
Second Amendment issue. 

31. Donna Greco:  
Ms. Greco provided a reflection on the past history in which dictators disarmed 
citizens which resulted in the government having free rule of the people.  She stated 
the Second Amendment provides protection from a tyrannical government.   

32. Attilio Contini:  
Mr. Contini noted he was a former Ulster County Legislator and stated issues that were 
the cause of the problem needed to be addressed, such as drug use and mental health.  
In his opinion, he stated the law should not have been entitled SAFE NY ACT but 
rather NYS Act of Treason.   

33. Dennis Williams:  
Mr. Williams stated he was one of the faces of the NRA and that it was not the gun, 
but the person pulling the trigger, that killed.   

34. Jay Martin:  
Mr. Martin stated he was raised by his family to “do the right thing” and that the 
resolution presented wasn’t a Democratic or Republican thing but a 
freedom/constitutional issue.  He stated that contrary to what has been said about Draft 
Resolution 0154, it has become the benchmark in other counties.  He asked that the 
Legislature support Draft Resolution 0154 and “do the right thing.” 

35. James Smiseth:  
Mr. Smiseth stated he was representing the Ulster County Federated Sportsmen which 
represents about 4,800 sportsmen and their families.  He referred to the shooting at 
Newtown and stated the assault rifle referenced wasn’t used but was found in the trunk 
of the car.   

36. Darrell Berg:  

 



MINUTES 
PAGE 10  
FEBRUARY 19, 2013 

 
Mr. Berg encouraged the passing of the Resolution.  Written statement on file with the 
Clerk of the Legislature.  

37. Patricia DuBois:  
Written statement on file with the Clerk of the Legislature.  

38. Gaetana Ciarlente:  
Ms.Ciarlente stated she was a licensed clinical social worker.  She stated that she had 
taken a gun safety course and conveyed some of what she had learned.  She reviewed 
certain requirements on background checks with regard to pistol permit applications.  
She stated there was no need for the SAFE Act as there were already strict laws in 
place.   

39. Tom Maerling:   
Written statement on file with the Clerk of the Legislature. 

40. James Uhl: 
Mr. Uhl remarked that rewarding terrorism is a bad precedent to set and that the kid in 
Newtown was a terrorist who copied a man in Norway.  He felt if the United States 
cowers to this, it would set a bad precedent.  He believed that Governor Cuomo put the 
future children in danger by allowing that kid to go down in history as “gutting” the 
Second Amendment. 

41. Robert Conyea:  
Mr. Conyea commented regarding the Constitution and asked for support of the 
Second Amendment.  He felt the Constitution must be taken in its entirety.  He 
presented an article entitled “Order from General Thomas Gage to March to Concord” 
which is on file with the Clerk of the Legislature.   

42. Vin Bernstein:  
Mr. Bernstein stated the SAFE Act flies in the face of the United States Constitution.   

43. Tom Mihalics:  
Mr. Mihalics stated he was a New Paltz resident, a gun owner and also a firearms 
instructor.  He stated most people that owned firearms weren’t hunters.  He expressed 
being  disheartened in the way in which the Governor went about in passing in the NY 
SAFE Act.   

44. Ed Gaddy: 



MINUTES 
PAGE 11  
FEBRUARY 19, 2013 

 
Mr. Gaddy asked for support of the Resolution stating the Founding Fathers believed 
the contents of the Second Amendment were so important that it was made the 2nd 
Amendment.  Mr. Gaddy stated armed people are citizens, unarmed people are 
subjects.  He felt the Governor robbed people with his “cat burglar” legislation.  He 
noted that if the Resolution wasn’t passed, they would “remember in November.”    

45. Nona McKeever:  
Ms. McKeever spoke in support of the SAFE Act and stated the Resolution didn’t 
support her.   

46. George Campian:   
Mr. Campian stated was a United States veteran and gun owner who understood both 
sides of the issue.  He felt action needed to be taken to curtail gun violence. He wanted 
to know if anyone brought attention to the fact of whose actions the Governor actually 
followed.   

47. Diane Watt:  
Ms. Watt stated she was a Gardiner resident who supported the proposed Resolution 
and recounted her personal experience in protecting her family during two separation 
incidents.   

48. Beth Freer:  
Ms. Freer stated she was a neighbor of the Watt’s who had experienced some of the 
same incidents.  She remarked that there are bad people in the world that don’t abide 
by the rules.  She stated that the manner in which Gov. Cuomo was able to get the 
SAFE Act passed was sneaky and underhanded.  She also wished to coin the phrase 
iterated earlier - “Remember in November.” 

49. James Freer:  
Mr. Freer agreed with his wife and stated they both serve in the Department of 
Corrections.  He felt the inmates he had dealt with had more consideration to their 
rights than that given to law abiding citizens by Governor Cuomo.   

50. Gerry Fornino:  
Mr. Fornino referenced the difference between the right to bear arms as opposed to 
privileges; such as the privilege to drive a car.  He recalled the terrorist attacks using 
fertilizer on the World Trade towers and Oklahoma City.  He suggested rather than 
guns, fertilizer should be regulated.   

51. Robert Garrett:  



MINUTES 
PAGE 12  
FEBRUARY 19, 2013 

 
Mr. Garrett discussed illegal people, such as those involved in gangs, drug addicts, etc, 
committing crimes and not legal people.  He felt the focus should be placed there.  He 
stated that the Governor hasn’t done justice as to what is required of gun owners.   

52. Bill Mansfield:  
Mr. Mansfield stated he had been an Afghanistan soldier.  He remarked on how the 
NY SAFE Act was run through without the 3-day review period when there were only 
three sections that went into effect immediately.  He questioned, where was the “need 
for necessity.”  He stated what troubled him the most was the section that made him a 
criminal overnight.   

53. Joe Liuni:  
Mr. Liuni remarked that the person from New Paltz should read “Heller v. DEC.”  He 
commended the Legislature for going through the process.  He indicated that some of 
the blame should be placed on the State Legislators who voted for the law. He 
reviewed the processing by the Federation of handgun applications.  He noted these 
applications were comprised of professionals and woman, among others.   

54. Christine Williams:  
Ms. Williams provided her educational and personal background.  She stated she has 
been an educator and was always interested in firearms; learning the responsibility of 
firearms from her parents.  She reflected that she and her husband, among others in 
attendance, were law abiding citizens sharing the same profile.  She stated the SAFE 
Act wasn’t supported and that it needed to be repealed.  She supported exposure and 
education, not more laws.  She stated that she is involved in starting a woman’s group.   

55. Jack Massey:  
Mr. Massey didn’t support the State Act. He noted there was no call for gun control 
when the killings at Waco and Kent State occurred.   

56. Eddie Gunks:  
Written statement on file with the Clerk of the Legislature. 

57. John Drake:  
Mr. Drake stated the purpose of gun ownership was not to kill people but to protect 
life, liberty and property.  He finished by saying this was a constitutional republic with 
the right to a voice and an opinion.  

58. Santos Lopez:  



MINUTES 
PAGE 13  
FEBRUARY 19, 2013 

 
Mr. Lopez felt Cuomo’s laws were unconstitutional and that the people’s feelings must 
be voiced.  He stated that Governor Cuomo worked for the people and the people 
didn’t work for him.  He asked if the United States people needed to be unarmed when 
the world was in turmoil.  He felt that Ulster County should nullify Cuomo’s law.   

59. Jason Adsit:  
Mr. Adsit provided a definition of a “militia.”  He stated in a perfect world, there 
would be no need for guns but legal firearms were necessary given that crime exists.  
He stated providing a list of gun owners made them a target to gang members.  

60. Marie Ruger:  
Ms. Ruger stated she and her husband own a business in Ulster County that owns and 
sells guns.  She remarked on the emotions evident that evening and that decisions were 
being made without representation.  She stressed that the Legislators were elected by 
the people to represent the people.  She stated that the law should be repealed.  She felt 
they could take the good parts, such as those dealing with mental health, and start from 
there.  

61. Jim Cranston:  
Mr. Cranston urged the Legislature to pass Resolution 52, but apologized to the people 
in support of the SAFE Act, stating that the heckling was not part of the democratic 
process.   

62. Elmer LeSeur:  
Mr. LeSeur thanked the Legislature for allowing the accommodations for all to be 
heard which was not a luxury that was afforded the people by the Governor.  He spoke 
on behalf of his family, the Federated Sportsmen and the Wittenberg Sportsman.  He 
wanted to make the point that the process used to pass the Resolution was flawed and 
resulted in holes in the law. He stated that the laws we have need to be enforced and 
violators should be punished.   

 
Statements from Marc Rider, Susan Murphy and Janet Carter also on file with the Clerk of the 
Legislature.  
 
 
RESOLUTION NOS:   26 - 57 
 
 
Chairman Bernardo recognized Legislator Ronk for the purpose of making a motion to take 
Resolution No. 52 (Draft Resolution No. 154) out of order, seconded by Legislator Donaldson. 



MINUTES 
PAGE 14  
FEBRUARY 19, 2013 
 
Resolution No. 52 - Opposing The Process Of Enactment And Certain Provisions Contained Within 
The New York SAFE Act 
 
ADOPTED BY THE FOLLOWING ROLL CALL VOTE:   
 
        AYES: 14  NOES: 8  

(Absent:  Legislator Lopez)  
(Noes:  Legs. Bartels, Donaldson,  Gregorius, 
Loughran, Robert Parete, Provenzano, 
Rodriguez and Wishnick) 

 
Discussion:  
 
Legs. Bartels, Belfiglio, Donaldson, Gregorius, Provenzano, Ronk and Wishnick each made 
statements in support of their respective votes.   
 
 
Brief recess was called by Chairman Bernardo for the purpose of allowing members of the audience 
to exit the auditorium so as to not disturb the remaining proceedings. 
 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 26 – Requesting The County Personnel Officer Provide A Monthly Accounting 
Of All New County Employees, Employee Department Transfers, New Contract Employees, New 
Department And Deputy Department Head Appointments, Department Head And Deputy 
Department Head Transfers And Resignations Within All County Departments By Title – 
 
WITHDRAWN BY SPONSORS 
 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 27 -Urging The State To Pass Legislation That Ensures The Surcharge Imposed 
On Wireless Telephones Is Distributed As Originally Intended 
 
Chairman Bernardo recognized Legislator Ronk for the purpose of an amendment.  Legislator Ronk 
motioned to amend the first “Resolved” after “Bill No. S.1720” adding “and A4357”, seconded by 
Legislator Richard Parete. 
 
Discussion:  
 
Legislator Provenzano indicated that they were advised that the Assembly Bill failed therefore 
making it a one-house Bill.  Legislator Ronk asked Legislator Provenzano through the Chairman if  
 



MINUTES 
PAGE 15  
FEBRUARY 19, 2013 
 
the Bill was brought to the Assembly floor and voted down.  Chairman Bernardo asked Legislative 
Counsel Chapman for clarification to which he responded that the Bill was introduced February 4th  
and had not been voted on, as of yet.  Legislator Richard Parete stated for the most part, all 
memorializing resolutions are for bills that haven’t been voted on.   
 
MOTION ADOPTED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 
  

AYES:   20     NOES:   1 
        (Noes: Legislator Provenzano) 
        (Legislator Briggs left at 10:15 PM) 
        (Absent: Legislator Lopez)  
 
ADOPTED AS AMENDED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 
    

AYES:   20     NOES:   1 
    (Noes: Legislator Provenzano) 
    (Legislator Briggs left at 10:15 PM) 
    (Absent: Legislator Lopez)  

 
 
Motion by Legislator Ronk to take Resolution Nos. 28 – 30 as a block, seconded by Legislator 
Donaldson. 
 
Resolutions Nos. 28 – 30 were adopted unanimously by the following vote.  
 
ADOPTED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 
 

         AYES:   21       NOES:   0 
                    (Legislator Briggs left at 10:15 PM) 
         (Absent: Legislator Lopez) 

(Resolutions 28 & 29 Approved by the 
County Executive) 

 
 
Resolution No. 31 - Approving The Execution Of Various Contracts And Change Orders In The 
Amount Of $50,000.00 Or In Excess Of $50,000.00 Entered Into By The County 
 
Legislator Gerentine motioned, seconded by Legislator Maio, to delete item L49-1 from the 
Abstract. 
 
Discussion:  



MINUTES 
PAGE 16  
FEBRUARY 19, 2013 
 
Legislator Donaldson requested according to Rule Q to separate L49-3.  Legislator Council Guerin 
stated that there was only one proposition before the Legislature at that time and therefore, it could  
not be divided.  Legislator Ronk indicated that there had been prior issues regarding contracts and 
that he would be sponsoring a Local Law to amend the Administrative Code and the manner in 
which contracts are brought to the floor.  Legislator Bartels stated she would gladly co-sponsor that 
Local Law and explained her vote on Resolution No. 31.  Legislator Donaldson stated the Resolution 
was dealing with three (3) subjects and agreed with Legislator Bartels that he disagreed with the 
mindset.   
 
MOTION ADOPTED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 

AYES:   21     NOES:   0 
(Legislator Briggs left at 10:15 PM) 
(Absent: Legislator Lopez) 

 
ADOPTED AS AMENDED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 
 

AYES:   18     NOES:   3 
(NOES: Legislators Bartels, Donaldson and 
 Rodriguez)  
(Legislator Briggs left at 10:15 PM) 

        (Absent: Legislator Lopez) 
        (Approved by the County Executive) 
 
 
Resolution No. 32 – Establishing the Ulster County Public Safety Advisory Committee 
 
Legislator Ronk motioned, seconded by Legislator Richard Parete, to amend the Resolution by doing 
the following: 
 

1) Adding a fifth WHEREAS as indicated in bold font 
 

2) Adding the following language to the first RESOLVED as indicated in bold font, 
“examine how drug abuse and drug related crimes can be reduced” 

 

3) Modifying the Advisory Committee structure, specified in the second RESOLVED, to 
consist of 11 members instead of 18 members who are appointed by the Chairman of the 
Legislature, as indicated by striking some of the language and adding the language in bold 
font   

 

4) Adding a third RESOLVED as indicated in bold font 
 
Discussion:  
 



MINUTES 
PAGE 17  
FEBRUARY 19, 2013 
Legislator Aiello commended Legislator Wawro on the effort she put into the Resolution and also 
thanked Majority Leader Ronk for making a somewhat confusing situation simplified. 
 
MOTION ADOPTED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 
 

         AYES:   21       NOES:   0 
                    (Legislator Briggs left at 10:15 PM) 
         (Absent: Legislator Lopez) 
 
ADOPTED AS AMENDED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 
 
             AYES:   21     NOES:   0 

(Legislator Briggs left at 10:15 PM) 
        (Absent: Legislator Lopez) 
          
 
Legislator Ronk motioned to take Resolution Nos. 33- 34 as a block, seconded by Legislator 
Donaldson. 
 
Resolutions Nos. 33-34 were adopted unanimously by the following vote: 
 
ADOPTED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 
 

AYES:   21       NOES:   0 
                    (Legislator Briggs left at 10:15 PM) 
         (Absent: Legislator Lopez) 

(Approved by the County Executive) 
 
 
Resolution No. 35 - Adopting The Ulster County Comprehensive Written Investment Policy 
Pursuant To Section 39 Of New York State General Municipal Law And The Office Of The New 
York State Comptroller’s Local Management Guide – Investing And Protecting Public Funds  
 
Legislator Gerentine motioned, seconded by Legislator Maio, to change section VII, Designation of  
Depositories, by adding an (O) after Section A3-4 for clarification, and by adding the following 
sentence to the end of the section: A copy of the designation shall be filed with the Commissioner of 
Finance who will transmit a copy to the Clerk of the Legislature.  
 
MOTION ADOPTED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 
 

AYES:   21       NOES:   0 
         (Legislator Briggs left at 10:15 PM) 



MINUTES 
PAGE 18  
FEBRUARY 19, 2013 
           (Absent: Legislator Lopez) 
 
ADOPTED AS AMENDED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 
 

AYES:   21       NOES:   0 
          (Legislator Briggs left at 10:15 PM) 
          (Absent: Legislator Lopez) 
                                                                                  (Approved by the County Executive) 
 
 
Legislator Ronk motioned to take Resolution Nos. 36- 38 as a block, seconded by Legislator 
Donaldson. 
 
Resolutions Nos. 36 – 38 were adopted unanimously by the following vote: 
 
ADOPTED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 
 

AYES:   21       NOES:   0 
 
         (Legislator Briggs left at 10:15 PM) 
           (Absent: Legislator Lopez) 

(Approved by the County Executive) 
 
 
Resolution No. 39 - Authorizing The County’s Share Of The Cost Of A Surface Drainage 
Improvement Project In The City Of Kingston, In And For The County Of Ulster, New York, At A 
Maximum Estimated Cost Of $125,000, And Authorizing The Issuance Of $125,000 Bonds Of Said 
County To Pay The Cost Thereof 
 
ADOPTED BY THE FOLLOWING ROLL CALL VOTE: 
 
        AYES:   21       NOES:   0 
         (Legislator Briggs left at 10:15 PM) 
           (Absent: Legislator Lopez) 

(Approved by the County Executive) 
 
 
Chair Bernardo sought a motion, made by Legislator Ronk and seconded by Legislator 
Donaldson to take Resolution Nos. 40- 47 as a block. 
 
Resolutions Nos. 40 – 47 were adopted unanimously by the following vote: 
 



MINUTES 
PAGE 19  
FEBRUARY 19, 2013 
ADOPTED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 

 
AYES:   21       NOES:   0 

         (Legislator Briggs left at 10:15 PM) 
           (Absent: Legislator Lopez) 
        (Approved by the County Executive) 
 
 
Resolution No. 48 - Authorizing The Purchase Of A Pick-Up Truck For The Department Of Public 
Works, For The County Of Ulster, New York, At A Maximum Estimated Cost Of $23,500, And 
Authorizing The Issuance Of $23,500 Bonds Of Said County To Pay The Cost Thereof 
 
ADOPTED BY THE FOLLOWING ROLL CALL VOTE: 
 
        AYES:   21       NOES:   0 
         (Legislator Briggs left at 10:15 PM) 
           (Absent: Legislator Lopez) 

(Approved by the County Executive) 
 
 
Chair Bernardo sought a motion, made by Legislator Ronk and seconded by Legislator 
Donaldson to take Resolution Nos. 49-51 and 53-56 as a block noting Resolution 52 was already 
addressed. 
 
Resolutions Nos. 49 – 51 and 53 – 56 were adopted unanimously by the following vote: 
 
ADOPTED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 
 

AYES:   21       NOES:   0 
         (Legislator Briggs left at 10:15 PM) 
           (Absent: Legislator Lopez) 
        (Resolution Nos. 49–51 and 53-56 
        Approved by the County Executive) 
  
 
Resolution No. 57 - Authorizing The Purchase Of Equipment For Construction And Maintenance 
Purposes, For The Department Of Public Works Of The County Of Ulster, New York, At A 
Maximum Estimated Cost Of $1,414,300, And Authorizing The Issuance Of $1,414,300 Serial 
Bonds Of Said County To Pay The Cost Thereof 
 
ADOPTED BY THE FOLLOWING ROLL CALL VOTE: 
 



MINUTES 
PAGE 20  
FEBRUARY 19, 2013 
        AYES:   21       NOES:   0 
         (Legislator Briggs left at 10:15 PM) 
        (Absent: Legislator Lopez)  

(Approved by the County Executive) 
 
 
Legislator Donaldson requested that Anthony Crespino, an Alderman from Kingston, be added to the 
memorial list.  Legislator Maloney requested that the name of Gertrude Greer be added.  Legislator 
Fabiano asked that Stevie Nicholich be remembered.  Legislator Wawro asked that Donna O’Rourke 
and Viola Olsen be named.  
 
MEETING ADJOURNED IN MEMORY OF: 
 
Bruce Loertscher, Plattekill Supervisor Conrad  “Connie” Schwall, High Falls 
David “Wayne” Depew, Kerhonkson  Medora A. Vogt, Palm City, Fla. 
John “Jack” Greco, Mt. Marion Lloyd Lund, Kingston 
Deputy William G. King, Shawangunk James J. Harned, Accord 
Helen Kish VanBuren, Marbletown Thomas Knowles, High Falls 
Phyllis Ertel St. John, Kingston Robert W. Breitenstein, Woodstock 
Walter F. Swarthout, Sr., Kingston Louis Ciaccio, Highland 
 
 

MEETING ADJOURNED:  10: 41 PM 
 
 

NEXT MEETING:  
 
The next Regular Meeting of the Ulster County Legislature will be held on Tuesday, March 19, 
2013 at 7:00 PM in the Legislative Chambers, Sixth Floor, Ulster County Office Building, 244 Fair 
Street, Kingston, New York.   
 
 
Resolution deadline is Wednesday, February 27, 2013 at 12 Noon. 














































































































































































































































































































































































	February 19, 2013 Minutes.pdf
	MINUTES

	Session Documents
	Session Documents II
	Session Documents III
	Session Documents IV

